PAGE  
1
ANNEX – ANNUAL SECTORAL REPORT

Chapter 3: Services


	Chapter 3 (k:1) : Transport Services: Maritime

	Section
	Improvements Implemented Since Last IAP
	Current Entry Requirements
	Further Improvements Planned

	Operational Requirements


	No changes. 

	According to the current legislation, the Government promotes free competition in port services. 

The Ministry of Transportation and Communications (MTC) is in charge of policies related to the liberalization of this sector, and the Transport Investment Supervisor Organism (OSITRAN) is the regulatory public entity of port services that supervises the fulfillment of the obligations of concession contracts and also regulates the ports which are administrated by the state company ENAPU (National Ports Enterprise).

The Private Investment Promotion Agency (PROINVERSION), in coordination with the National Port Authority (APN), is responsible for designing and promotion of private investment in transport infrastructure. APN is in charge of the ports management. 
Additionally, the Dirección General de Capitanías y Puertos (DICAPI) is in charge of the maritime transit, ship authorizations, and safety and environmental issues the sea, lakes and rivers.   
Shipping current policies establish:

· Free market competition.

· Opening navigation route.

· Freedom for selling or buying ships.

· Flexibility for freightment of ships.

· Liberalisation of the cabotage for the Andean Community. October, 2007.

For further information, please visit: 
Ministry of Transportation and Communications (MTC):
www.mtc.gob.pe
Supervisory Organism of Transport (OSITRAN)
www.ositran.gob.pe
Private Investment Promotion Agency (PROINVERSION):
www.proinversion.gob.pe
National Port Authority
www.apn.gob.pe
Maritime Authority
www.dicapi.gob.pe 


	

	Licensing and Qualification Requirements of Service Providers


	No changes. 


	In order to operate, national maritime companies must accomplish the following requirements requested by the MTC:

· Be incorporated in accordance with the Peruvian law.

· Be provided with a social statute.
· Describe the type of services offered, number of operating ships, traffic, routes and frequencies. 

International maritime transport can be provided by foreign shipping companies.

	It is expected that port concession processes will continue in the next years. In special the port of Ilo, Paita and General San Martín. 

	Foreign Entry


	
	Maritime Services

Only a “National shipowner” or “National Ship Enterprise” may supply maritime cabotage services (including transport by lakes and rivers). A “National shipowner” or “National Ship Enterprise” means a Peruvian national or juridical person organized under Peruvian law, with its principal domicile and real and effective headquarters in Peru, whose business is to provide water transportation services for cabotage or international traffic and which is the owner or lessee under a financial lease or a bareboat charter, with an obligatory purchase option, of at least one Peruvian flag merchant ship and that has obtained the relevant Operation Permit from the General Aquatic Transport Directorate.

At least 51 percent of the subscribed and paid-in capital must be owned by Peruvian citizens.
The chairman of the board of directors, a majority of the directors, and the General Manager of a National Ship Enterprise must be nationals and resident in Peru.

The captain of the Peruvian-flagged vessels must be a Peruvian national. In cases where there is no duly qualified Peruvian captain, a foreign national may be authorized to serve as captain.

Only a Peruvian national may be a licensed harbor pilot.

Cabotage is exclusively reserved to Peruvian flagged vessels owned by a National Shipowner or National Ship Enterprise or leased under a financial lease or a bareboat charter, with an obligatory purchase option, except that foreign-flagged vessels may be used by a National Shipowner or National Ship Enterprise for a period of no more than six months for water transportation exclusively between Peruvian ports or cabotage when such an entity does not own its own vessels or lease vessels.
Twenty-five per cent of the transport of hydrocarbons in national waters or cabotage is reserved for the boats of the Peruvian Navy

Only a Peruvian citizen may register as a “port worker”.
Peruvian flag vessels must have a Peruvian captain and at least 80% of Peruvian crew, but when no Peruvian captain is available an exception can be made.

Only Peruvians may obtain the license for “Práctico”

Port Services

Peruvian Government has granted in Concession two terminals: 

(i) Matarani Port, located in southern Peru; and 

(ii) Callao Port. (only the south terminal) 

In 2006 the construction and later operation (green field project) of the New Container Terminal, called “South Terminal” was granted in concession. It implied an investment of US$ 550 millions. It is expected to start operations at the end of 2009.  

	

	Discriminatory Treatment/

MFN


	
	Participation of foreign shipping companies will only be granted on the base of reciprocity.

Maritime Transport Services Sector maintains some discriminatory measures that are listed in “foreign entry” section.

There is no discrimination in the port services sector.

	


